

GARFIELD-PERRY STAMP CLUB

1941

During 1941, the membership increased by seven members, sixteen new members being admitted, while there was a loss of nine. An especially severe loss was the death of Warner S. Robison, who had been active in club affairs for many years. A loss of importance was the death of Oliver W. Upson, who, though he took no active part, had been a member of the club since 1925. Another loss to the club was the removal from the city of Karl T. Broadley, who had been an unusually efficient Entertainment Chairman during the first part of the year.

There were not quite as many meetings held as usual -- due to there being no meetings held on Memorial Day, July 4th and the day after Christmas. The attendance was about 15% better than in 1940.

While the 51st Anniversary Celebration was naturally not as elaborate as the Golden Jubilee Celebration, it was very successful. The Fall Open House was also a success. (1)

At a number of meetings, unusual entertainment was arranged for, commencing with the Junior exhibit on March 4th and ending with the Cleveland Stamp Club visit on November 28th. Alvin Good Night on March 21st, British War Relief Night (June 13th), Past President's Night (June 27th) and Wolverine Stamp Club Night (October 24th), were high spots in the meetings of the year. (2)

The outstanding entertainment by a member was probably Dr. Bruner's talk and exhibit of Medical Stamps of the World, and, by a visitor, Dr. Leebrick's talk on Hawaii.

A series of ten-minute talks included many interesting and instructive ones.

1941 - Page 2

An innovation was a series of door prizes started early in the year and continued for several months.

A picnic was held on July 20th, which was well attended. Later in the year, a clam bake was proposed but abandoned.

An important event was the Club's decision to invite the A.P.S. to hold its 1942 convention in Cleveland.

There were <sup>four</sup> ~~three~~ Donation Auctions, one for the benefit of the 51st Anniversary Celebration Fund, and the other two for the benefit of British War Relief.

As to the library, Mr. Green made great progress in the indexing of the material. There were a number of important donations.

Through the efforts of Mr. Moore, a series of three articles was run in the Plain Dealer in May, entitled "50 Years of the Garfield-Perry Stamp Club". *see 2<sup>d</sup> TP my memo #2*

Mr. Hahn donated to the club an American flag which was displayed in the clubroom at each meeting, commencing with the meeting of June 13.

A project which was unfinished at the end of the year was the compilation and publication of a membership roster, showing information as to the collecting activities of the various members.

GARFIELD-PERRY STAMP CLUB

1941 - Page 3

OFFICERS

President	H. M. Sanford
Vice President	R. E. Johnson
Secretary	W. R. McCloud
Treasurer	M. E. Cornman
Trustees	N. P. LaGanke
	D. W. Martin
	E. D. Piper
	L. D. Shoemaker
	Mark Snow
Auctioneer <del>Manager</del>	Geo. C. Hahn
Publicity	Geo. C. Hahn (to 3/7)
	F. J. McGlynn (to 7/18)
	N. P. LaGanke

COMMITTEES

British War Relief	D. W. Martin
	R. E. Johnson
	D. F. Lybarger
Picnic	W. S. Robison (Honorary Chairman)
	N. P. LaGanke
	K. T. Broadley
	F. J. McGlynn
Clambake	J. Gluck
	R. Lackner
	E. H. Rankin, Sr.
Entertainment	K. T. Broadley (to 7/11)
	E. W. Miller
Nominating (for 1942 Trustees)	
	D. F. Lybarger
	F. W. Grant
	L. D. Shoemaker

Continued on Page 4.

GARFIELD-PERRY STAMP CLUB

1941 - Page 4

Officers and Committees (continued)

51st Anniversary Celebration

Gen. Chairman	Johnson
Arrangements	Sanford
Entertainment	Cornman
Bourse	LaGanke
Exhibit	Nemecek
Publicity	Hahn
Junior	Snow
Finance	Cornman, Green, Showmaker

Committees (Miscellaneous)

- To index material in the club library  
Cornman, Bole and Green
- To investigate issuance of a membership roster  
Rankin Jr., Broadley and Johnson  
Rankin Sr., Piper and Johnson (appt'd 10/17)
- Budget for 1941  
Cornman, Johnson and LaGanke
- To work with the Committee on Private Research  
of Western Reserve University  
Lybarger, Moore and Martin
- To raise funds for the A.P.S. 1942 convention  
Martin, Chairman
- To arrange for exhibit, in the name of the club,  
of a frame at the annual Open House party of the  
George Westinghouse Stamp Club at Wilkinsburg,  
Penna., October 11-12, 1941  
*E. N. Moore*
- Audit and Budget  
Martin, Cornman and Hagans

GARFIELD-PERRY STAMP CLUB

1941 - Page 5

CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP

16 new members were admitted, as follows:

Jan.3	Stephen G. Rich	#720	Associate
Jan.3	Frank R. Johnston	721	"
Feb.7	Charles A. Reed	722	"
Mar.7	Stuart W. Burdick	723	"
Apr.4	Alfred Bormann	724	Active
Apr.4	Robert Lackner	725	"
Apr.4	Morris Everett	726	Associate
May 2	George F. Opdyke	727	Active
May 2	Allen Joseph Ewing	728	"
May 2	William J. Corrigan	729	"
Jun.6	Arthur Rydquist	730	Associate
Jun.6	Horace Taylor	731	"
Aug.1	Charles A. Butler	732	Active
Oct.3	Wm. Henry Compton, Jr.	733	"
Nov.7	Robert E. Dempsey	734	Associate
Dec.5	Bramston W.H. Beach	735	"

3 members died, as follows:

Jan.	Gustav Afuhs	#669	Associate
May 16	Oliver W. Upson	419	Active
Jun.24	Warner S. Robison	383	"

4 members resigned, as follows:

Apr.4	Dr. Prichard von David	#653	Associate
Jun.6	William J. Aull	613	"
Jul.11	William D. Preston	268	Active
Sep.5	A. M. Davis	526	Associate

2 members were dropped for non-payment of dues

Apr.4	Robert F. Molitor	#303	Active
Jul.11	Jack Schildhouse	564	"

One member, Charles E. Jenkins, #634, of Cuyahoga Falls, Ohio, was transferred from Active to Associate membership.

The total membership, as of January 1, 1942, was 174  
a gain of 7.

GARFIELD-PERRY STAMP CLUB

1941 - Page 6

MEETINGS:

49 meetings were held. No meetings were held on Memorial Day, July 4th, or on the day after Christmas.

The total attendance was 1723 (including 349 visitors), an increase of 242 over 1940. The average attendance per meeting was 35, an increase of 5 over 1940.

All meetings were held in Hotel Hollenden.

Those most active in attendance were:--

- 46 meetings: Grieve and LaGanke  
 45 meetings: Cook, Martin, Pforzheimer,  
 Rankin, Sr., and Sanford  
 44 meetings: Hahn  
 42 meetings: Miller and Piper  
 41 meetings: Holden and Johnson  
 39 meetings: McCloud  
 37 meetings: Lybarger  
 36 meetings: Bole, Gluck, Grant, Green,  
 and Roegge.  
 35 meetings: McGlynn  
 32 meetings: Langdon, and Mathews  
 31 meetings: Cornman and Rankin Jr  
 30 meetings: Moore  
 29 meetings: Lickner and Shoemaker  
 25 meetings: Kieding  
 24 meetings: Snow  
 22 meetings: Bradley and Roof  
 21 meetings: Hagan  
 19 meetings: Lumbach  
 18 meetings: King and Tyler  
 17 meetings: Butler

The following veteran members did not attend a single meeting: Brodie, Dorer, Stahl Strong.

GARFIDL-PERRY STAMP CLUB

1941

Meetings and Attendance

Forty-nine regular meetings were held, not including the Fall Open House of November 14th. No meetings were held on Memorial Day or July 4th. All meetings were held in Hotel Hollenden - the most of them in Parlor "A".

The Secretary's annual Report shows that the total number attending (exclusive of the Fall Open House) was 1723 - - 1374 members and 349 visitors. The average attendance per meeting was 35 -- 28 members and 7 visitors.

Attendance of the various active and active life members was as follows:

46 Grieve	25 Nieding	2 Boyd
LaGanke	24 Snow	<del>xxxx</del> Good
45 Cook	22 Bradley	<del>Rax</del> Sanderson
Martin	Roof	Skove
Pforzheimer	21 Haganis	1 Bermann
Rankin, Sr.	19 Dambach	Bruner
Sanford	18 King	Hinske
44 Hahn	Tyler	Presten W D
42 Miller	17 Butler	Ø Barkdull
Piper	15 Jesse	Brodie
41 Holden	Rupert	Compton
Johnson	13 Leonard	Dorer
39 McLoud	12 Lloyd	Ewing
37 Lybarger	10 Lehman	Headings
36 Bole	7 Beck	Hill D A
Gluck	Ervin	Kroehle
Grant	Robinson	Kunkle
Green	5 Corrigan	Kurfess
Roegge	Garibotti	Preston R B
35 McGlynn	Nemecek	Schuyler
32 Langdon	4 Finlayson	Strong
Mathews	3 Dickson	Van Heesen
31 Cernman	Hill, A.S.	Woodworth
Rankin Jr	McGay	Young
30 Moore	Novy	
29 Lackner	Opdyke	
Shoemaker	Wilcox	

SARFIELD-PERRY STAMP CLUB

1941 - Page 7

ENTERTAINMENT at Regular Club Meetings

Commencing with Mr. Green's exhibit of patriotic covers on January 10th, special entertainment was provided at practically every meeting. This consisted of exhibits, talks, contests, auctions, moving pictures and a Bingo Party.

The following were outstanding:--

- Jan.31 Talk "The Ethics of Stamp Collecting"  
Lybarger
- Feb.28 Talk "Philatelic Jurisprudence" Green
- Mar.14 Junior Exhibition
- Mar.21 "Alvin Good" Night
- Mar.28 Talk "Stamp Collecting vs Philately" Vining
- Apr.11 Exhibit "Medical Stamps of the World" Bruner
- Jul.11 Exhibit and Talk "Hawaii" Dr. Leebrick
- Sep.12 "Collectors Club of Akron" Night
- Oct.24 "Wolverine Stamp Club" Night
- Nov.28 "Cleveland Stamp Club" Night

A series of ten-minute talks and papers was presented, which, however, was discontinued in August, due to the illness of Chairman King of the Committee in charge.

A new series of open discussions "Philatelic Headlines and Forum" -- under the direction of D. W. Martin, was started in September. These resulted in some very thought-provoking expressions of views by the various members.



Garfield Perry Stamp Club

1941

Entertainments

There was an unusual number of motion pictures shown -- at seven different meetings.

A new series of book reviews was started ~~later~~ in the year. These were reviews of books in the Club library, the aim being not only to entertain the members but to awaken an interest in the library.

An interesting feature inaugurated in September was a series of "Philatelic Headlines and Forum" conducted by Mr. Martin. These consisted of a discussion and open forum on editorials and articles on philatelic subjects.

Entertainment Chairman Broadley, inaugurated a new series of door prizes in March.

# Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Quarters

~~all meetings were held in Hotel Hollander --  
the most of them in Harbor St.~~

## The 51st Anniversary Celebration

The 51st anniversary ~~was~~ celebrated on March 28th, 29th and 30th at Hotel Hollander. The celebration began with an informal dinner on Friday evening in the Coffee Shop of the Hotel; The exhibition which was opened at 11:00 am Saturday morning consisted of about 150 frames -- mostly entered by active members. Among out-of-town exhibitors were Hans Lagerloef, and Alfred F. Lichtenstein, and Henry Myer, whose Cape of Good Hope triangles attracted much attention.

The banquet, held in the Assembly Room on Saturday night was attended by about 70. Mr. Corman was the Toastmaster, the J. Edw. Vining the principal speaker. The Vining ~~1941~~ subject was "America: Philatelic Center of Tomorrow"

A Hi-Hat Auction was the feature of Saturday afternoon; a "Philatelic Breakfast" was held on Sunday morning; a meeting of the War Cover Club and a "Philatelic Round Table"

~~The~~  
at 5:30 pm on March 29th, Messrs. Sanford, Martin, Johnson & Yarger participated in a broadcast over station WCLE (Vining?)

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Junior Exhibit

Under the direction of Mr. Snow, an annual Junior Exhibit was held on March 14th

There were eleven entries. The six winners were:

Laddie Pata, Nathan Hale Jr H. S.  
James Smodgrass, West Tech High S.  
Richard Miller, Harding Jr H. S.  
Richard Morse, Harding Jr H. S.  
Tom Hathaway, Rocky River Jr. H. S.  
Paul Robinson, Rocky River Jr H. S.

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Picnic

The Club picnic, held at ~~the~~ Green Summer Home near Breckville, was attended by about 70 persons.

Those who registered were:

Mr and Mrs Sanford  
Mr and Mrs Johnson & dtr Nancy  
Mr and Mrs Ed Rankin Sr  
Mr and Mrs Miller & son Dick & dtr Carol  
Mr and Mrs Grant  
Mr and Mrs Snow  
Mr and Mrs LaGauke & son Charles  
Mr and Mrs Ed Rankin Jr and dtr Nancy  
Mr and Mrs Cornman & son Ronald  
Mr and Mrs Hagans  
Mr and Mrs Martin  
Mr and Mrs Lloyd  
Mr and Mrs King  
Mr and Mrs Green, Colburn Green & Robert Green  
Mr and Mrs Mathews & father in law J. Mathews  
Mr and Mrs Leonard  
Mr and Mrs Garibotti & sons Anthony and Sergio  
Mr and Mrs Odyke & four children  
Capt and Mrs William Forshimer  
Mr and Mrs Jesse  
Mr and Mrs Cabensinger  
Mr Cook and Mrs Edwards  
Mrs Warner & Robison  
Mrs Marie Ward  
Mr Bole  
Mr McGlynn  
Mr Butler  
Mr Piper  
Mr Finlayson  
Mr Roegge  
Mr Hanford  
Mr Wolcott  
Mr Laekner

There was a "baby contest" with the following result:

- |                   |                   |
|-------------------|-------------------|
| 1. Nancy Rankin   | 6. Al Cook        |
| 2. Ronald Cornman | 7. Bill Bole      |
| 3. Bill Rankin    | 8. Nelson LaGauke |
| 4. Don Martin     | 9. Ed Roegge      |
| 5. Fred Green     |                   |

# Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

## Fall Open House

The fourth Fall Open House was held on November 14th in the Assembly Room of Hotel Hollenden, under the direction of Mr LaGanke. The Scotch auction was one of the principal attractions. Postmaster O'Donnell was present, and made a talk. ~~Moore's Harbor~~ Short Talks were made by the following members:

Hahn Censored foreign mail  
Lybarger 1942 APS Conventions  
Martin Quiz contest  
Moore ~~Philatelic~~ Philatelic terms (chalk talk)  
Corman The Voice of Inexperience (Skits)  
Shoemaker How to win Cups

215 persons registered (including 46 Garfield-Perry members). 14 adult and 6 junior stamp clubs were represented. There were 43 door prizes handed out.

The total expense to the club was about \$21.00 which was more than covered by \$19.13 realized from the Scotch auction, and donations in cash received for magazine subscriptions given away.

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Clambake (Proposed)

On August 1st, Dr. Gluck proposed that the Club hold a clambake some time in the fall. President Sanford appointed Dr. Gluck the Chairman of a Committee to investigate and make recommendation on this subject. At the next meeting, it was announced that Messrs Lachner and Rankin, Sr. had been added to the committee.

The committee found it impracticable to hold a clambake.

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

"10-minute Paper" Contest

The award, a gold plaque, for the best 10-minute paper read before the Club during the year 1940, was given to Mr Johnson for his paper - "Schleswig-Holstein"

Other contestants ranked as follows:

2. Mr Green "Through The Looking Glass"
3. Mr Roof "United States Postage Currency"
4. Mr Sanford "World Famous Philatelists"
5. Mr Hahn "The Residential Series"

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1947

Change in Rules regarding APS Sales Circuits

At the meeting of February 28th, Mr. Johnson called the attention of the Club to the new liability of the APS Insurance Fund regarding APS sales circuit books. Mr. Holden was, at the same meeting, appointed APS Sales Circuit Manager.

At the next <sup>Board</sup> meeting -- on March 7th -- a motion was passed that "The Board go on record that the sales circuit books be displayed only at club meetings and under no circumstances are they to be delivered to club members or any one else outside of club meetings except at the circulator's own risk.", and another motion passed that "the Board go on record to the effect that the Club will underwrite any loss sustained by the circulator while transporting the circuit to or from club meetings or while in his home or office providing the circulator can prove the loss was not sustained through his own negligence."



Garfield Perry Stamp Club

1941

Authorization of  
~~Provision~~ for remission of dues of members in  
Military Service

A Motion was passed on June 6th, ~~the~~  
providing that "any member in good standing  
who is or may be on active duty in the  
U.S. Army, Navy, Marine Corps or Coast Guard  
shall have his dues remitted for the period  
such member is engaged on active duty  
and stationed outside the confines of  
Greater Cleveland."

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Publicity

In addition to the usual publicity in the philatelic magazines, arranged for by the Publicity Chairman, a series of three articles "50 Years of the Garfield-Perry Stamp Club" by S. J. Kelly was run in the Cleveland Plain Dealer (on the editorial page) during the week of May 11th. This special publicity was arranged for by Mr. E. N. Moore.

---

also see 7d-777 my memo (2)  
HMS

---

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Club Bulletin

On July 11th, a motion was passed that applicants for membership be sent copies of the club bulletin from the time their applications are posted.

At the meeting of October 10th, attention was called to the fact that the bulletins, as issued commencing with the issue of <sup>1940?</sup> were headed "Garfield-Perry Stamp Club" without any other name (such as "News" or "Bulletin"). The President appointed a committee (Messrs. Martin, LaGarcke and Piper) to recommend a name for the bulletin.

Mr Piper compiled a memorandum of the names under which the Bulletin had been issued and the committee recommended that the Bulletin be called the "Garfield-Perry News" until a better name could be found.

1941

Publication of  
Proposed Membership Roster

At the meeting of January 24th, President Sanford appointed a committee (Messrs Rankin, Jr., Broadley and Johnson) to investigate the advisability of publishing a roster of members.

The committee ~~made an appeal~~ <sup>sent out questionnaires</sup> to members for the necessary information as to their collecting activities, etc.; but many of the members failed to respond; and on August 1st, Mr Rankin, Jr reported a lack of progress and asked for more co-operation.

Later in the year -- on October 17th -- The President announced that he had appointed Messrs. Ed Rankin, Sr. and Piper to succeed Messrs Ed Rankin, Jr and Broadley on the committee.

The project remained dormant, for lack of co-operation, for the remainder of the year; on November 28th, the committee reported that only 58% of the active members ~~had~~ and 24% of the associate members had returned the questionnaires.

Too Bad this failed  
HMS

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Finances and Accounts

At the beginning of the year, there was a balance of \$ 227.35 in the Club Treasury; the balance at the end of the year was \$ 231.15

	<del>At end of year</del>	<del>at start of year</del>	<del>Net</del>
<del>General fund</del>	<del>157.60</del>		
<del>Permanent fund</del>	<del>50.00</del>		
<del>Library fund</del>	<del>22.85</del>		
<del>Anniv. Celeb. "</del>	<del>68.64</del>		
<del>APS Ann "</del>	<del>42.44</del>		

Donation Auctions

Four donation auctions were held, as follows.

February 21st for March party	37.33
June 13th " British War Relief	} 119.06
June 20th " " "	
December 29th " APS Convention fund	3.35

Dr. Glueck's Bingo Party on February 14th, realized \$ 23.70 for the March party fund.

# Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

## Participation in A.P.S. activities

At the meeting of July 11th, a motion was passed that Garfield-Perry invite the American Philatelic Society, to hold its 1942 convention in Cleveland.

At the next meeting, on July 18th, the Club voted to endorse the Washington Philatelic Society, slate of candidates for APS ~~officer~~ 1941-43 Directors

Various members attended the 1941 APS convention, and the APS accepted the Club's invitation to meet in Cleveland in 1942.

At the meeting of September 19th, it was decided to elect by mail ballots, a Board <sup>of</sup> trustees of a corporation (of G-P members) to be in charge of making arrangements for the 1942 convention. Messrs Green, Hahn, LaGranke, Lybarger, Martin, Sanford and Shoemaker were elected Trustees

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Club Library

Librarian Green was very active in work on the library during the year. ~~He~~ He made considerable progress in the indexing of articles in magazines and made some important additions -- among others, a number of bound volumes of the Collectors Club Philatelist, including the scarce Volume I.

Several members made worth-while donations to the library. Among these, were ten volumes of the Collectors Club Philatelist donated by Alvin Good.

Early in the year, a recommendation was presented by Mr. Hahn that fire insurance <sup>on the library</sup> be taken out by the Club.

Also early in the year, the President appointed a committee (Messrs. Cornman, Bole and Green) to index the material in the library.

Garfield Perry Stamp Club  
1941

Club Exhibit at Wilkensburg Pa

The Club exhibited one frame at the annual Open House of the George Westinghouse Stamp Club at Wilkensburg, Pa on October 11th and 12th.

Mr. E. N. Moore was Chairman of the committee which prepared the frame. Among other items included were:

~~The~~

The exhibit won the first award - a bell.



Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Proposed sponsorship by the Club of  
the compilation of a history of  
the postal system in Ohio

Mr Wm S. Dix, Research Associate of the Committee on Private Research of Western Reserve University, made a talk at the Club meeting of January 10th on the activities of his committee and suggested that Garfield-Perry sponsor the compilation of a history of the postal system in Ohio.

At the next meeting, the President appointed a committee (Messrs. Lybarger, Moore and Martin) to work with the Western Reserve University committee in regard to the suggested history.

## Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

### 1941 Club contribution to British War Relief

The Club participated in the British War Relief project.

Early in April, President Sanford appointed Messrs Martin, Johnson and Byrger on this matter. They arranged for ~~a~~ donations of items to be auctioned for the benefit of the fund.

The auction was held on June 13th (which was called "British night"). Four reels of movies showing conditions in England, particularly London, were shown. ~~After~~ The meeting was attended by <sup>Mr.</sup> George Warburton, British Proconsul, who made a short talk. The sum of \$52.55 was realized thru the auction; with further material ~~of~~ unsold. These left-over lots were sold at the next meeting -- on June 20th.

The total amount turned over to the British War Relief was \$119.06

### Club contribution to American Red Cross

A baby bond was raffled at the meeting of December 19th. The bond was won by Mr. Bole. The additional sum, ~~amounting~~ of \$6.75 (in excess of the cost of the bond) was contributed to the Red Cross. The ~~envelopes~~ <sup>covers</sup> in which the members returned their ballots to the Election Committee were auctioned at this meeting ~~and purchased~~ and purchased by Mr. Moore for \$2.00 which amount was also turned over to the Red Cross.

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Club History

At the annual meeting on December 19th,  
The Piper presented to the Club, two volumes  
of Club History covering the first 25 years &  
from 1890 to 1915

Nice work here Ed  
& please include in the story  
M

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

The Lagerloef Swedish Collection

The club authorized the blowermaker, early in February, to send the Lagerloef Swedish collection to Mr. Arthur Rydquist of Detroit ~~for~~ Mr. Rydquist's request for his use in ~~writing~~ an article on Swedish issues.

On June 6th, Mr. Johnson was appointed trustee of the collection for a five year term.

Garfield-Perry Stamp Club

1941

Donation of a Portfolio to the Club

As the meeting of April 11th, "The Spirits" presented to the Club, for the use of Mr. McLeod, and succeeding Secretaries, a handsome leather portfolio.

Donation of a flag to the Club

At the meeting of June 13th ("British Night"), on the eve of Flag Day, Mr. Hahn presented to the Club, a United States flag to be displayed at Club meetings. The oath of allegiance was given by members and visitors present.

Donation of an Album to the Club

On February 14th, Capt Pforzheimer presented to the Club a fine new loose-leaf album containing several pages of stamps, mainly in sheets, with the plan that other members contribute additional pages.

Garfield Perry Stamp Club

1941

Election of Officers for 1942

The Nominating and Election Committee (Messrs Lybarger, Grant and Shoemaker) nominated the following candidates for Trustees for 1942:

Gale	Hagans	Labanck	Miller
Cook	Neckel	McLoud	<del>Piper</del> Piper
Gluck	Johnson	Miller	Sanford
Hagans			

Later, Cornman was nominated by petition.

The election resulted in the following being elected:

Cornman	Johnson	Miller
Hagans	Labanck	Piper
Hahn	McLoud	Sanford